### MINUTES OF THE CLIMATE AND BIODIVERSITY COMMITTEE MEETING held virtually on 13<sup>th</sup> July 2020, 7pm

Present:

Cllr Williams	Cllr Thomas
Cllr Perkin	Cllr T Martin

The Mayor, Cllr Reynolds

### In attendance:

L Bareham (Town Clerk)

65.	Apologies	
	None	
66.	Declarations of Interest	
	None	
67.	Minutes and Matters Arising	
	Cllr Williams asked for the virtual environment meeting with interested	
	parties to roll on as an action. It was proposed by Cllr Williams,	
	seconded by Cllr T Martin and on being put to the meeting it was	
	RESOLVED to approve the Minutes of the Meeting dated 18 May	
	2020.	
68.	Pesticide Action Network	
	No response had been received to the letter sent to KCC Cabinet	
	Member for the Environment and will be chased. Cllr Williams had	CW
	spoken to Nick of PAN, who can help write policies and plans and	
	acknowledged that this would take two to three years to achieve. We	
	could also link with other councils of a similar size to network. Others	
	agreed it was sensible to take a phased approach. It was agreed to contact all housing associations (thought to be 8) and write to the	тс
	Cabinet Member for the Environment at Swale. Cllr Thomas	10
	suggested using the letter sent to KCC as a template to send to other	
	stakeholders. Cllr Williams agreed that the message needed to be	
	consistent. It was important to take the community with us and have	
	a wider conversation as to why and how they can be part of it,	
	including allotment sites. It was agreed that we needed to get KCC	
	and SBC onside otherwise it would be a struggle and also to write to	
	schools from September onwards.	
	Cllr Williams proposed, seconded by Cllr Perkin and on being put to	
	the meeting it was RECOMMENDED that Faversham Town Council	

	adopts the draft Action Plan, which will be reviewed on a regular	
	basis	
69.	<b>PPE Recycling</b> This has been brought to the attention of the Committee by a member of Plastic Free Faversham. Although it was considered a good idea, it was noted that there are strict rules around the disposal of potentially hazardous waste, and FTC did not have the appropriate facilities. Also it was unfortunate, but likely that the PPE would need incinerating rather than recycling. It was agreed that FTC would discourage the use of single use PPE	
	for anything other than medical purposes and encourage reusable masks.	
70.	<b>Community Gardening</b> Creating areas of for biodiversity should be encouraged and Faversham in Bloom were increasing the number of areas they were looking after. It was agreed to speak to community groups to see what assistance they need and help them ensure permission to cultivate was in place. Cllr Williams confirmed if groups work through Faversham in Bloom they were covered for insurance etc. It was agreed to use social media to call for where people to nominate areas for biodiversity.	
71.	<u>Urban Planting</u> Cllr Williams wanted to look at plant options, and increase planting next year in the town centre (planters, trees) and asked for this to be considered by the Public Spaces Committee, as he felt sustainable planting in the hanging baskets had less effect. Alison Peters of SBC will be approached for advice on streetscapes, should there be hanging baskets in future?	ET
72.	Litter Picks It was noted that the Great British Clean had been rescheduled for 11 <sup>th</sup> to 27 <sup>th</sup> September. It was agreed that Brooke could put together a video compilation of individual litter picks, in a similar way to the Environment Day, and that litter picks should take place in each Ward	тс

# Pesticide Free Town Action Plan

#### **Background**

On 10th June 2019 Faversham Town Council declared an Environmental Climate Change and Biodiversity Emergency and pledged to make Faversham carbon neutral by 2030, to work with Kent County Council and Swale Borough Council to determine and implement best practice methods.

As Faversham Town Council is not responsible for the open spaces within the town, we do not ourselves use pesticides. The Facilities Manager has investigated the use of pesticides by the county and borough councils, housing associations, schools and allotment holders.

On 18th May 2020 it was resolved that the Town Council write to KCC to inform them of our goal to become a pesticide free town and to carry out further investigations for an action plan to become pesticide free.

#### What are Pesticides and how are they used?

Pesticides are chemical substances designed to kill pests and are commonly used to control or eliminate a variety of pests. The most common forms of pesticides are:

- 1. Insecticides kills insects
- 2. Herbicides kills plants
- 3. Rodenticides kills rats and mice
- 4. Fungicides kills fungus, mould and mildew
- 5. Bactericides kills bacteria

According to Pesticide Action Network (PAN UK) a survey carried out in April 2018 revealed that there are 38 different types of pesticides used in UK towns and cities. PAN UK states there is increasing concern from residents, local authorities and governments about the impact of pesticides on human and environmental health. As a result, towns and cities across the UK are considerably reducing, if not completely eradicating the use of pesticides in urban spaces and are switching to non-chemical methods of weed control.

PAN UK works with local councils to develop a policy framework for a transition to non-chemical alternatives and have successfully worked closely with councils like Bristol, Brighton and Lewes and more to achieve this. There are also a number of town councils in the south west who have declared pesticide free status, although as they are in a unitary authority they are largely responsible for the parks and open spaces in the their areas.

## What are the benefits of going Pesticide free?

A range of benefits can result from adopting a pesticide-free approach, with environmental being the main advantage. Overview of benefits:

- Safeguarding of the general public's health by reducing their exposure to potentially harmful pesticides.
- Potential financial savings for councils due to reduced spending on chemicals and compulsory training for staff applying pesticides.
- Improved health for council employees and contractors due to reduced exposure to pesticides.
- Positive message for the public.
- Compliance with environmental and health legislation.
- Better habitats for bees, pollinators and other wildlife.
- Reduced contamination of water bodies which could lead to safer water for the public.

### Proposed Action Plan to becoming a Pesticide Free Town

Becoming a pesticide free town will need to be achieved in stages, due to the reliance on third parties. The first steps to going pesticide free are:

### Stage 1

Faversham Town Council agrees to become a Pesticide Free Council Investigate what existing pesticides are being used.

- What products are being used, where, how often and why
- Who uses them? Is it a contractor, a sub-contractor or in-house staff?
- Write to Swale Borough Council and Kent County Council advising the Town Council's desire for Faversham to become a pesticide free town. Request a meeting to discuss their current procedures for maintenance contracts and what they specify in terms of pesticide use.

# Stage 2

Faversham Town Council actively encourages the Community to look at alternative methods.

- Get support from the community
- Raising public awareness is key to the success of going pesticide-free and ensuring clear communication of the plan of action, and their reasons for change, to the public. If local residents understand the health and

- environmental benefits, they are much more likely to support the initiative and accept a higher level of wilding.
- Utilise the Town Council newsletter, website and social media to raise awareness about the benefits of going pesticide free.
- Increasing understanding of the value of 'weeds' which are fundamental to halting the decline of bees, birds and other wildlife.
- Promote any existing good work being undertaken to reduce pesticide use in Faversham, including publicising any areas that are already pesticide-free.
- A simple on-line poll publicised in the newsletter for Facebook, or a face-toface questionnaire/ consultation can be useful in gauging community support of a pesticide free approach.
- Talk to other Town and Parish Councils who have already made the move.
- Organise a Full Council debate about making Faversham pesticide-free.
- Develop a Motion, put before the council, calling for an end to the use of pesticides on all areas of land under council control (allotments)

## Stage 3

Faversham Town Council continues discussions with KCC and SBC to work towards using alternative methods in Faversham.

• Develop a clear pesticide policy. The policy should contain a schedule of how the council intends to go pesticide free which should include:

a) When and where pesticides are used.

- b) The times, location and circumstances of any ongoing pesticide application.
- c) The benefits of going pesticide free.

d) Any information about reductions in pesticide use to date or alternatives already in use.

e) Plans for trialling pesticide free approaches – e.g. methods, locations and how success will be evaluated.

# Stage 4

Phased approach, with initially a reduction of pesticides in Faversham Implementing the Policy:

- Consider a phased approach. There is no one technique which will control weeds (or other pests) across assets.
- Enlist the support of community volunteers/groups for pesticide-free tasks such as hand weeding, or for pollinator friendly activities such as creating wildflower areas.

- Keep the community informed. Make sure staff and contractors are able to respond positively to enquiries from the public.
- Alternatives to pesticides in public spaces. There are a range of different approaches available. The effectiveness of each method will vary greatly depending on the local context and environment and, in most cases, a range of different approaches will be required to replace pesticides.

### **Recommendation**

Faversham Town Council recognises the importance of the health and wellbeing of our residents and recommends:

- 1. Faversham Town Council agrees to become a pesticide free council.
- 2. Faversham Town Council will impose a voluntary cessation of the use of pesticides within the town boundary, including all Town Council assets.
- 3. Actively encourages, promotes and educates the community to use alternative methods to pesticides and to continue to take steps towards becoming a Pesticide free Town.
- 4. Build a relationship with KCC, SBC, schools and housing associations, and their contractors, to reduce the amount of pesticides used in Faversham. Encouraging a phased-out approach in parks and public open spaces.